
AN AGENDA FOR A MEETING OF THE PWYLLGOR CYD-
GYSYLLTU Â'R GYMUNED

GWŶS I GYFARFOD PWYLLGOR

C Hanagan 
Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth y Gwasanaethau Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu 
Cyngor Bwrdeistref Sirol Rhondda Cynon Taf Y Pafiliynau Parc Hen Lofa'r Cambrian 
Cwm Clydach, 
CF40 2XX
Meeting Contact: Sarah Daniel,  Democratic Services  (07385 085 169) 

Bydd cyfarfod o'r PWYLLGOR CYD-GYSYLLTU Â'R GYMUNED yn cael ei 
gynnal yn ar 

Dyddiad:- Dydd Gwener, 23ain Ebrill, 2021
Amser:- 10.00 am

 MATERION I'W TRAFOD
1. CROESO AC YMDDIHEURIADAU 

2. DATGAN BUDDIANT 
Derbyn datganiadau o fuddiannau personol gan Aelodau, yn unol â 
gofynion y Cod Ymddygiad. 
Noder:  Mae gofyn i Aelodau ddatgan rhif a phwnc yr agendwm mae eu 
buddiant yn ymwneud ag ef a mynegi natur y buddiant personol hwnnw; a 
lle bo Aelodau'n ymneilltuo o'r cyfarfod o ganlyniad i ddatgelu buddiant sy'n 
rhagfarnu, mae rhaid iddyn nhw roi gwybod i'r Cadeirydd pan fyddan nhw'n 
gadael.

3. COFNODION 
Derbyn cofnodion cyfarfod 5 Chwefror 2021 yn rhai cywir.

(Tudalennau 3 - 6)
4. NEWID YN YR HINSAWDD 

5. ADRODDIAD DIWEDDARAF GAN Y CYFARWYDDWR 
GWASANAETH - GWASANAETHAU DEMOCRATAIDD A 
CHYFATHREBU 
Derbyn diweddariad gan y Cyfarwyddwr Gwasanaeth – Gwasanaethau 
Democrataidd a Chyfathrebu



6. DEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL AC ETHOLIADAU (CYMRU) 2021 
(Tudalennau 7 - 

22)
7. CRONFA CYMORTH DIGIDOL 

(Tudalennau 23 - 
26)

8. MATERION BRYS 
To consider any urgent items as the Chairman feels appropriate.

Cylchrediad - Aelodau o'r Pwyllgor Cyd-gysylltu â'r Gymuned:- 
Y Cynghorydd Bwrdeistref Sirol M. Webber (Cadeirydd) a'r Cynghorydd Bwrdeistref Sirol 
D. R. Bevan, Aelod o'r Cabinet ar faterion Menter, Datblygu, a Thai. 

Cadeiryddion a Chlercod Cyngor Tref Pontypridd a Chynghorau Cymuned Ynys-y-bŵl a 
Choed y Cwm, Y Rhigos, Hirwaun a Phenderyn, Llanilltud Faerdref, Llantrisant, 
Llanharan, Llanhari, Tonyrefail, Y Gilfach-goch, Pont-y-clun, a Ffynnon Taf a Nantgarw. 

Swyddogion: 



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNCIL COMMUNITY LIAISON COMMITTEE
Minutes of the meeting of the Community Liaison Committee meeting held on Friday, 5 February 

2021 at 10.00 am held virtually.

County Borough Councillors - Community Liaison Committee Members in attendance:-
Councillor M Webber – Chairperson 

Councillor R Bevan – Cabinet Member Enterprise Development and Housing

Community Council Members 
Karyl May – Llantwit Fardre Community Council 

Tony Graham – Chief Executive Pontypridd Town Council 
Catherine Kennedy – Llanharan Community Council 

Emma Nelmes – Hirwaun and Penderyn Community Council 

Officers in attendance
Christian Hanagan – Service Director Democratic Services and Communications 

Peter Mortimer – Regeneration Manager
Neil Griffiths – Head of Finance

Emma Wilkins – Council Business Unit Manager 
Sarah Daniel – Senior Democratic Services Officer 

10  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

None received 

11  MINUTES 

RESOLVED: The minutes of the meeting of the Community Liaison Committee 
held on the 6 November 2020 were approved as a true and accurate record of 
the meeting

12  VERBAL UPDATE - SERVICE DIRECTOR OF DEMOCRATIC SERVICES 
AND COMMUNICATIONS 

The Service Director of Democratic Services and Communications provided a 
verbal update to members that covered the following issues: 

 The Local Government and Elections Bill had received royal ascent, 
therefore this Committee will focus on and discuss in the future. Notable 
points in the Bill include: 

 Engagement and participation 16/17 year olds in voting 
 Diversity 
 Closer working relationships between Principal Authorities and 

Community Councils  
 Access to training to make a difference in the Communities. 

 
 Services – remain in level 4 restrictions therefore services will be 

reviewed once these have been lifted. 

 RCTCBC are supporting the vaccine delivery.  The rollout is being 
shared with Community Councils.

Tudalen 3

Agendwm 3



 RCTCBC is coordinating the promotion of the census with a Census 
Liaison manager appointed.  A digital approach will be taken first and 
promotion of participation by working together.  

A member thanked officers for their continued support throughout the pandemic 
and expressed interest in a joint procurement process on ICT facilities for TCCs  
to meet requirements of the Local Government and Elections Bill

13  FORWARD WORK PROGRAMME 

The Service Director Democratic Services and Communications presented the 
report to members.  Members were reminded that if they wished to propose any 
item for discussion at a meeting they could contact Democratic Services team 
who would consider its inclusion on the Work Programme.    

RESOLVED: members noted the contents of the report

14  BUDGET CONSULTATION 21/22 

The Head of Financial Services presented the report to Members.  He advised 
the Committee that the proposed increase was amongst the lowest in wales.  
He advised that arising from the consultation was how important investment into 
parks and play areas was, especially during recent times. He added that the 
graduate and apprenticeship programme had been very successful in the council 
with graduate positions going on into very senior positions within the council. 

RESOLVED: Members noted the update

15  WELSH GOVERNMENT FUNDING - TOWN CENTRES 

The Regeneration Manager gave an update to members and stated that Welsh Government 
has launched new policy on transforming towns which was brought together with a range of 
support.  He advised Members of the sources of support that cover RCT and were available to 
all communities. 

SCHEME Enterprise Investment Fund

ELIGIBLE AREAS RCT Wide
ELIGIBLE 
ACTIVITY

Building works; purchase of equipment/machinery / IT; 
website development and one off marketing costs.

Original focus of the Fund on supporting growth has now 
been revised to support business adapt and/or diversify in 
response to the current economic circumstances. 

GRANT RATE 50%
MAXIMUM GRANT £10,000

SCHEME Town Centre Maintenance Grant

ELIGIBLE AREAS Aberdare, Ferndale, Mountain Ash, Pontypridd, Porth, 

Tudalen 4



Tonypandy, Treorchy
ELIGIBLE ACTIVITY External works to front elevation e.g rendering, painting, 

repair to stonework, rainwater goods, signage.

Original remit of scheme has been extended to include 
small scale external works that facilitate social distancing.

GRANT RATE 75%
MAXIMUM GRANT £1,000 (additional £300 for skip/scaffold cost)

SCHEME WG Main Town Centre COVID Recovery Grant

ELIGIBLE AREAS Aberdare, Ferndale, Llantrisant, Mountain Ash, 
Pontypridd, Porth, Tonypandy, Treorchy

ELIGIBLE ACTIVITY External interventions which will facilitate social distancing 
/ outdoor trading including canopies, tables, chairs and 
seating provision, screening, and outdoor servery 
facilities, courtyard/rear garden improvements. 

GRANT RATE 80%
MAXIMUM GRANT £10,000

SCHEME VTF Small Town Centre COVID Recovery Grant
ELIGIBLE AREAS Aberaman; Abercynon; Church Village; Gadlys; Gelli; 

Hirwaun; Llanharan; Maerdy; Penrhiwceiber; Pentre; 
Penygraig; Pontyclun; Rhydfelin; Taffs Well; Talbot Green; 
Ton Pentre; Tonteg; Tonyrefail; Trebanog; Trecynon; 
Treforest; Treherbert; Tynant; Tynewydd; Williamstown; 
Ynyshir; Ynysybwl; Ystrad

ELIGIBLE ACTIVITY Internal and external  interventions which will facilitate 
social distancing / outdoor trading.

GRANT RATE 100%
MAXIMUM GRANT £10,000

SCHEME Flood Resilience Grant
ELIGIBLE AREAS Aberdare, Ferndale, Llantrisant, Mountain Ash, 

Pontypridd, Porth, Tonypandy, Treorchy
ELIGIBLE ACTIVITY Implementation of anti-flood measures to improve 

business resilience to deal with any such potential 
weather events in the future including internal and 
floodgates to doorways; UPVC floor coverings and 
skirting; internal moisture resistant wall boarding and 
raising of power points.

GRANT RATE 75%
MAXIMUM GRANT £7,500

SCHEME Welsh Church Act Fund
ELIGIBLE AREAS RCT Wide

Tudalen 5



ELIGIBLE ACTIVITY The Welsh Church Act Fund is available to Churches, 
Chapels, Places of Public Worship, constituted community 
groups and charities operating in the County Borough 
areas of Rhondda Cynon Taf, Merthyr and Bridgend. 
Organisations must provide activities that have long term 
direct benefit to residents and communities within these 
areas and must be open to members of the public at 
large.
It provides support for capital expenditure such as 
refurbishment of a community buildings or places of 
worship; Purchase of capital equipment; Other purposes 
beneficial to the wider community.

GRANT RATE & 
MAXIMUM GRANT

There are 3 different grant rates:
 100% towards total eligible project cost  - up to a 

maximum grant of £2,000
 Up to 90% towards total eligible project cost - up to 

a maximum grant of £10,000
 Up to 80% towards total eligible project cost - up to 

a maximum grant of £50,000

The chairperson advised that funding was available for all Communities within RCTCBC.  The 
Cabinet Member Enterprise, Development and Housing added that there was funding and 
other grants available from National and Welsh Government and that rate relief was also 
available to businesses big and small.  He further added that the grants were under continuous 
review to address the pandemic and flooding events and were strictly monitored internally and 
externally. A member asked if there was a portal available where they could see all the grants 
available.  The Regeneration Manager advised that information was updated on the business 
section of the website but that the information conveyed to members today would be put 
together and sent to all members.   

16  DIVERSITY IN DEMOCRACY 

The Service Director Democratic Services and Communications presented the 
report to members to provide them with details of the Diversity in Democracy 
work being undertaken by RCTs Democratic Services Committee and the 
opportunity to enhance this work through Town and Community Council 
engagement.

As part of the work, members were asked to nominate one member 
representative to the Council’s Diversity in Democracy Working Group

RESOLVED: Members nominated Ms. C. Kennedy to the Working Group as 
appointed at the Town and Community Council Officer meeting;

17  URGENT ITEMS
NONE 

Tudalen 6



RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL

COMMUNITY LIAISON COMMITTEE

APRIL 2021

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT & ELECTIONS (WALES) ACT 2021

REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR FOR DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 
COMMUNICATIONS

AUTHOR: CHRISTIAN HANAGAN

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT

1.1 The purpose of this report is to summarise the various elements of the Local 
Government & Elections (Wales) Act 2021 which received Royal Assent on the 
20th January 2021.

1.2 The report sets out the context and requirements of the Act, detailing 
Community Council’s current position and the support and resources needed 
to implement the introduction of the legislative requirements.

2.  RECOMMENDATIONS

Members are recommended to:

2.1 Note the update provided in this report.

2.2 Note the Community Council’s position statement outlined within the report in 
respect of the requirements of the Act and consider how the required actions 
are taken forward in line with the timescales stipulated within the Act or as 
relevant regulations are made by Welsh Government.

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 

3.1 The need to provide an overview of the duties placed upon Community Councils 
through the Local Government and Elections (Wales) Act 2021, which received 
royal assent on the 20th January 2021.

3.2 In accordance with the requirements of the Act, a number of actions will need 
to be addressed to ensure Community / Town Council’s comply with the 
legislative requirements.  

4. BACKGROUND

4.1 The Local Government and Election (Wales) Act (The Act) received Royal 
Assent on the 20th January 2021.  

4.2 The Act was one of only two Bills in the Welsh Government’s legislative 
programme to continue during the Covid -19 pandemic. The Bill was prioritised 

Tudalen 7

Agendwm 6



given the timescales required to introduce the planned reforms in respect of the 
2022 local government elections.

4.3 A link to the Act can be found here and explanatory notes found here.

5. PREVIOUS ENGAGEMENT BY WELSH GOVERNMENT 

5.1 The Act has been developed following engagement with local government over 
several years through:

- Draft Local Government Bill Wales – Nov 2015 
- Consultation on Electoral Reform – Oct 2017 
- Reforming Local Government: Resilience & Renewed White Paper – Jan 2017 
- Consultation on Powers and flexibilities – Jan 2018
- Strengthening Local Government: Delivering for People – Welsh Government 

Green Paper – June 2018
-

6. THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT & ELECTIONS (WALES) ACT 2021 SUMMARY 

6.1 The Local Government & Elections (Wales) Act will change the way RCT 
County Borough Council and Community and Town Councils will operate 
across a range of areas from electoral reform, public participation, governance 
and performance management, democratic processes and stronger working 
arrangements with Town and Community Councils. 

6.2 The Act includes provisions for:
 Reforming electoral arrangements for local government, including: 
 Extending the voting franchise to 16- and 17-year olds and foreign 

citizens legally resident in Wales,
 Changes to voter registration, 
 and enabling a principal council to choose between the ‘first past the 

post’ or the ‘single transferable vote’ voting systems;
 A general power of competence for principal councils and eligible 

community councils;
 Reforming public participation in local democracy;
 The leadership of principal councils, including to encourage greater 

diversity amongst executive members and establishing a statutory position 
of chief executive; 

 Strengthening Scrutiny arrangements and arrangements for member 
conduct; 

 The development of a framework and powers to facilitate more consistent 
and coherent regional working mechanisms;

Tudalen 8

https://business.senedd.wales/documents/s109068/Local%20Government%20and%20Elections%20Wales%20Bill%20As%20Passed.pdf
https://senedd.wales/laid%20documents/pri-ld12877-em-r/pri-ld12877-em-r-e.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2018-01/151124-lg-draft-bill-en.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2018-01/consultation_document-en_0.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2018-02/170130-white-paper-en.pdf
https://gov.wales/sites/default/files/consultations/2018-03/180320-strengthening-local-government-consultation-v1.pdf


 A new system for performance and governance based on self-assessment 
and peer review, including the consolidation of the Welsh Ministers’ support 
and intervention powers;

 Powers to facilitate voluntary mergers of principal councils and restructuring 
a principal area;

 Local government finance including non-domestic rating and council tax;
 Miscellaneous provisions relating to:
o Support provided for Community Councils
o Executive arrangements 
o The status of the Head of Democratic Services 
o information sharing between regulators,
o abolition of community polls,
o fire and rescue authorities,
o the Local Democracy and Boundary Commission for Wales, and
o Public Service Boards.

6.3 The ‘Coming into Force’ provisions of the Act are complex, with some 
provisions coming into force within days of Royal Assent, others within two 
months and the majority via Ministerial statutory instruments.

6.4 The Act includes a number of provisions which enhance the profile of Town 
and  Community Councils and the support a Principal Council is encouraged to 
provide. The new provisions placed upon Town and Community Councils mirror 
those now required by a Principal Council in respect of Public Participation and 
remote attendance. In addition specific requirements in respect of Members 
Training and support and how principal Councils support this work are included.

6.5 In 2020 the Council adopted a new Community Charter to support positive 
working relationships and share good practice in the best interest of local 
communities.  It is intended that through this Charter and through the work of 
the Community Liaison Committee RCT Council can look to support Community 
and Town Councils with the requirements of this Act going forward.

7. PART 1:  ELECTIONS

Extension of the right to vote in local government elections - Extending 
the vote franchise to 16- & 17-year olds and foreign citizens legally 
residents in Wales (Section 2)

7.1 The Act provides for the extension of the local government franchise to allow 
16 and 17 year-olds to be able to register to vote in Welsh local government 
elections and any poll in Wales which uses the local government franchise such 
as mayoral elections and referendums. They will not however, be able to vote in 

Tudalen 9



any local government by-elections taking place before May 2022.  The Act also 
allows for ‘qualifying foreign citizens’ to be included in the extended franchise.

7.2 The Act places a duty on principal Council’s to promote awareness of how to 
register to vote at local government elections amongst ‘relevant young people’ 
and to take whatever action the Councils thinks is necessary to help them to 
register. 

Position Statement:
Although not a requirement on Community and Town Councils, Community and 
Town Councils could assist promotion of the right to vote and the importance of 
democracy through promotion of RCT Council’s youth vote campaign through their 
own dedicated social media accounts / website.

Two Voting systems - Enabling councils to choose between a ‘first past the post’ 
(FPTP) or a ‘single transferable’ (STV) voting system (Section 5)

7.3 Post 2022 the Act will introduce the opportunity for individual Principal Councils 
to determine their own election arrangements.

7.4 Supporters of FPTP take the view that the voting and counting procedures are 
simple, familiar and relatively cheap, and therefore this system provides a 
straightforward relationship between where a candidate finishes in the tally of 
votes and whether or not they are elected. 

7.5 The White Paper ‘Reforming Local Government: Resilient and Renewed’ 
contained the proposal to allow individual principal councils to choose their 
voting system, the choice being between the FPTP system or the STV system. 

7.6 STV is a preferential voting system, which means voters are asked to rank the 
available candidates in order of preference, using numbers. Voters may choose 
to rank all the available candidates or only as many as they wish. STV is 
considered to be a system of proportional representation 

7.7 Welsh Government highlight that each election of a principal council is a 
separate election confined to the area of the council. Welsh Government has 
therefore determined that it is appropriate that the council should decide on its 
voting system, which best reflects the needs of their local people and 
communities. 

7.8 The Act provides that each principal council may decide for itself on the voting 
system to use, whether FPTP or STV. A principal council will continue to use 
the existing FPTP voting system until such time as it may decide to change. A 
decision to change voting system will require the support of at least two-thirds 
of the total number of councillors on the council (whether or not present and 
voting on a proposal to change). If a council has considered and rejected a 

Tudalen 10



proposal to change the voting system, the council may not re-visit the issue 
during the same electoral cycle.

7.9 Provision is made to prevent a principal council, having changed to a different 
voting system, from moving back until at least two ordinary elections have been 
held under the new system. 

Position Statement

The voting system for community council elections remains First Past the Post.

Change of electoral cycle from 4 years to 5 years (Section 14).

7.10 The Act changes the electoral cycle of principal councils and community 
councils from four to five-year terms. This would bring local government 
elections into line with the five-year terms for the UK Parliament (as set in the 
Fixed Term Parliaments Act 2011) and for the Assembly in the Government 
of Wales Act 2006. 

7.11 70% of respondents to the main electoral reform consultation agreed the term 
should be set at five years. 

7.12 The Act also seeks to provide a regulatory provision to increase the flexibility 
available to the Welsh Ministers, subject to consultation, to alter the date on 
which that election is held.

Position Statement:

At the 2017 local government elections, Councillors  were elected on a 4-year 
term.  Under section 37ZA(2) and (3) of the Wales Act 2017,  the day of an 
ordinary local government election in Wales cannot take place on the same 
day as the Assembly ordinary general election, therefore Members terms of 
office was extended for a 5 year period, until May 2022. 

The standard five year term provided under the Act would not only allow a 
consistent approach to terms of office across the democratic process but 
would also allow Members a further year to gain experience and knowledge 
for the benefit of their residents and the Council.

Disqualification for election and being a member of a local authority (section 20)

7.13 The Act provides the ability for council officers and employees, other than those 
holding politically restricted posts, to be entitled to stand for election to their 
own council. They will only be required to resign their paid employment with the 
council if they are elected. Welsh Government believe this will widen the pool 

Tudalen 11



of potential candidates while ensuring there is no conflict of interest once the 
candidate is elected. 

7.14 If a council officer or employee makes a declaration of office following the 
Election the person must resign from their position.  This resignation will have 
immediate effect irrespective of any notice period required.

Position Statement

This provision will widen the pool of potential candidates while ensuring there is no conflict 
of interest once the candidate is elected.  This will help take forward the diversity agenda 
for both Principal and Community and Town Councils.

Candidacy 

7.15 The Act amends the eligibility criteria for candidates at local government 
elections to allow a citizen of any country to stand for election. This is subject 
to the other qualifying criteria, such as age and residence. All other 
disqualification criteria will continue to apply. 

7.16 The Act amends the disqualification provisions in Wales to disqualify 
individuals, from standing for election, or holding office as a member of a 
principal council or community council in Wales, if they are subject to a 
bankruptcy or debt relief restrictions order, a person guilty of a corrupt or illegal 
practice, a person subject to the notification requirements of, or an order under, 
Part 2 of the sexual offences act 2003 and a person convicted, during a period 
of 5 years before the election of an offence for which he or she has been 
sentenced to a term of imprisonment of 3 months or more. 

Position Statement
It is the candidate’s responsibility to ensure they meet the eligibility criteria 
and not prohibited from standing by any of the disqualification provisions. 

8. PART 2 - GENERAL POWER OF COMPETENCE 

8.1 The Act provides principal councils and eligible community councils (‘qualifying 
local authorities’) with a general power of competence, with the aim of bringing 
about more effective, capable and innovative local government. 

8.2 The general power will allow qualifying local authorities to act in their 
communities’ best interests, generate efficiencies and secure value for money 
outcomes. They will also be able to raise money by charging for discretionary 
services and to trade in line with existing powers. 

8.3 In addition, the general power will allow qualifying local authorities to engage in 
activities potentially judged to be outside the remit of well-being power within 
LGA 2000. It is considered the general power will allow qualifying local 

Tudalen 12



authorities to be more innovative, and move away from a position where they 
have to identify a specific power in order to undertake a particular activity, to 
one in which it is assumed they can do something unless there is a statutory 
restriction preventing it. 

8.4 Specifically in relation to ‘eligible community councils’, the general power will 
empower this tier of local government, so it is better placed to be part of the 
Welsh public service in the future and can better contribute to local well-being 
and community resilience. Access to the general power will enable them to be 
ambitious and innovative. 

8.5 The restrictions on the use of the general power are in line with similar 
restrictions placed on councils in England in relation to their use of the general 
power of competence in the form that has applied in England since 2012. 

8.6 The conditions which community councils must meet, in order to be able to 
resolve themselves an ‘eligible community council’ are:

 at least two-thirds of the total number of members of the council have been 
declared to be elected  whether at an ordinary election or at a by-election,

 the clerk to the council holds such qualification or description of qualification 
as may be specified by the Welsh Ministers by regulations, and

 the council satisfies the audit condition.

8.7 The audit condition is satisfied if:

 the most recent Auditor General for Wales’ (AGW) opinion on the council’s 
accounts:

o is an unqualified AGW opinion on the council’s accounts, and

o was received by the council during the 12-month period ending on the 
day on which the council passes the resolution to become an eligible 
community council

 the AGW’s opinion on the council’s accounts which immediately preceded the 
opinion mentioned above is also an unqualified opinion.

8.8 The power to exercise the general power of competence for eligible community 
councils will come into force on 5 May 2022.  Ahead of this, there will be 
consultation on guidance and the regulations specifying a ‘relevant professional 
qualification’ for a clerk.  It is envisaged that this will be a sector specific 
qualification such as the Certificate in Local Council Administration (CiLCA).

8.9 It is intended that the well-being power, provided in section 2 of the Local 
Government Act 2000, will be repealed when the provisions relating to the 
general power of competence are brought into force for eligible community 
councils on 5 May 2022.  Until the well-being power is repealed community 

Tudalen 13



councils can continue to use the power.  Anything which is started by councils 
before, and is ongoing at, the time the well-being power is repealed can continue 
under this power until that thing is completed or until a council resolves to 
become an eligible community council. However nothing new may be started 
using the well-being power after it is repealed.

8.10 Once a community Council has resolved itself as an eligible community council 
it will need to reaffirm on an annual basis that it continues to meet the eligibility 
criteria.  A council would do so by passing a resolution at its annual meeting.  If 
this is not performed then the Community Council ceases to an eligible council 
at the end of the day following the AGM in question.  A community Council may 
decide that despite meetings the conditions, it no longer wishes to be an eligible 
community council.

8.11 In addition, if  a Community Council enters into an activity while it is an eligible 
community council the person to whom has entered into this activity can still rely 
on this general power of competence, even if the council is no longer eligible to 
exercise this general power.  This will provide clarity and certainty for anyone 
that a community council may enter into a contract with.

Position Statement

Community and Town Council’s continually work with the best interests of 
residents in mind, working to achieve value for money and efficient services 
across the areas they are responsible for.  The general power of competence 

Tudalen 14



will further embed this principle, allowing greater opportunities for Councils to 
explore.

Work will need to be taken forward to support Town and Community Councils 
with the eligibility criteria and exercising of the general power (if eligible to do 
so), with the platform of the Community Liaison Committee assisting with this 
support and the regular clerks meeting.

9. PART 3 – PROMOTING ACCESS TO LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

9.1 The Welsh Government is keen to encourage a more diverse range of members 
of the public to engage with local democracy. The majority of respondents to the 
draft Bill consultation agreed that improved public participation in local government 
was valuable. The Act places a statutory requirement upon principal councils to 
encourage public participation in their decision-making and scrutiny procedures for 
the first time. The proposals are also intended to support openness and 
transparency. 

9.2 The Act includes a duty to encourage local people to participate in local 
government (and to produce a strategy to that effect); 

• Duty to make petition scheme (and repeal of community polls); 
• Duty to broadcast certain meetings; 
• Greater flexibility around remote attendance of members. 

Public Participation Strategy (section 40)
9.3 Principal councils will be required to encourage local people to participate in 

local government. In addition, councils will be required to prepare, consult on, 
publish and review a ‘public participation strategy’, with the aim of making it 
easier for members of the public to understand how local government functions; 
how it makes decisions; and how local people can follow proceedings, input 
their views, and have them taken into account. These provisions will come into 
force in May 2022

Position Statement:

There is no requirement for a Community and Town Council to make a public 
participation strategy; though they should consider how they enable public 
participation to take place.  There would be opportunity for any engagement 
opportunities in the democracy process taken forward by the council to be 
promoted at a Community / Town Council level to try to achieve a wider 
engagement base for the benefits of the residents of RCT.

Petition scheme (section 42)

Tudalen 15



9.4 The Act requires a principal council to make a petition scheme setting out how 
it will handle and deal with petitions, including e-petitions. Such a proposal is 
similar to schemes already in place within a number of public bodies in Wales, 
such as the Assembly. These provisions will come into force in May 2022

Position Statement

There is no requirement for a community or Town council to have a 
petitions scheme.

Publication of Official addresses (Section 43)

9.5 Elected members should be freely accessible to local people. A duty will be 
placed on principal councils to publish an electronic and postal address for each 
member of the council on its website to support this objective. A council address 
may be used if the member wishes to protect the privacy of their home address 

Position Statement
There is no requirement for a community or Town council to publish such 
information, although it is noted most do provide through their relevant 
webpages, or alternative contact information is provided through the details 
of the clerk.  It is suggested as good practice that Members should use a 
Council email address when contacting residents, rather than a personal 
email address.

Constitution Guides (section 45)

9.6 The Act will require principal councils to prepare and publish a guide to their 
constitution, which explains in ordinary language the content of their 
constitution. This will be a layperson’s guide to the constitution, enabling the 
general public to understand how the council operates and makes decisions. 
The intention is to make it easier for local people to understand how their council 
functions. 

Position Statement
There is no requirement for a Community or Town Council to produce such a guide, 
however it may be useful to consider whether the Community Council wishes to 
produce a similar easy to read guide outlining its purpose and responsibilities, how 
it operates, how it meets and makes decisions to assist local residents understand 
and engage with the democratic process.

Electronic Broadcasts of meetings of certain local authorities (Section 46).

9.7 The Act places a duty on principal councils to put in place arrangements for a 
broadcast of council meetings so that members of the public who are unable to 
attend are able to see and hear proceedings as they happen. Recordings of 
meetings should also be publicly available for a reasonable period after the 
meeting.

Tudalen 16



Position Statement
There is no requirement for a Community or Town Council’s to webcast meetings. 

Conditions for remote attendance of members of local authorities (section 47)

9.8 The Act modifies the provisions in the 2011 Measure with the intention of 
making it easier for remote attendance to operate, including multi-location 
meetings where all individuals are attending virtually and hybrid meetings - 
where a number of individuals are attending in person at a designated location 
and others are attending virtually from a range of other locations. The Act 
makes permanent provision for remote meetings (multi-location)  and electronic 
publication of documents, currently provided through The Local Authorities, 
(Coronavirus) (Meetings) (Wales), Regulations 2020 Act and it is intended to 
have effect from 1 May 2021 to dovetail with the expiry of The Local Authorities, 
(Coronavirus) (Meetings) (Wales), 2020.

Position Statement
These provisions will also apply to Community and Town councils. Due to the 
Covid Pandemic, Community and Town Councils are currently hosting 
meetings remotely.  Support will need to be provided to allow for the 
development of hybrid meetings in the future. Community Councils will need 
to specify within their standing orders the conditions that must be satisfied for 
a member to remotely attend a meeting and must require the person chairing 
any such meeting to determine whether those conditions are satisfied.

Section 48 – Participation at meetings of community councils.

9.10 Members of the public attending a Community Council meeting must be given 
reasonable opportunity to make representations about an item of business due 
to be discussed at the meeting.

Position Statement
As a matter of good practice a number of Community and Town councils 
already give the public an opportunity to make representations, without a 
statutory obligation to do so.  The Chair will have the ability to curtail the 
opportunity if they consider someone’s use of it is likely to prejudice the 
effective conduct of the meeting.

Notice of Community Council meetings to be published electronically (Section 
49)

9.11 Community and Town Council’s are already required through amendments to 
paragraph 26 of schedule 23 to the 1972 Act to publish the time and place of 

Tudalen 17



their intended meetings electronically.  Further amendments to the Act provide 
the proper officers of the council greater flexibility in sending summonses and 
to clarify that electronic authentication is permissible.  In addition, a further 
amendment allows that the notice of a Committee summons must be published 
electronically and fixed in a conspicuous place in the Community’ rather than 
prescribing the offices of the Council as not all community councils have a 
council building.

Position Statement 
It is important to note that the electronic publication of documents extends to include 
making available key information as soon as reasonably practicable, and within 
seven working days of a community council meeting taking place, and must include: 
the names of members who attended; apologies for absence; declaration of interest; 
any decisions taken and the outcomes of any votes.  This would not apply to any 
decision taken in private, or where disclosure of the information would be contrary 
to any enactment.

Annual reports by Community Councils (section 52)

9.12 Community Councils will be required to prepare and publish an annual report 
about the Council’s priorities, activities and achievements during the preceding 
financial year.

Position Statement 

From April 2022 Community and Town Councils will have a duty to prepare and publish a 
report about the council’s priorities, activities and achievements. The first report must 
relate to the financial April 2021- March 2022 and be published as soon as reasonably 
practicable after April 2022. 

10. Part 4 Local Authority Executives, Members, officers and committees

REFORMING DEMOCRATIC PROCESSES & LEADERSHIP

10.1 The Act changes or enhances a number of requirements in respect of Local 
Authority Executives, Members, Officers and Committees. The changes 
include:

- Appointment of Chief Executives (rather than a head of paid service) with 
specific duties; 

- Appointment of assistants to cabinets and allowing job-sharing leaders or 
cabinet members; 

- Updating family absence provisions in line with those available to employees 
(via regulations); 

Tudalen 18



- Requiring leaders of political groups to promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct by members of their groups. 

Duties of leaders of political groups in relation to standards of conduct. 
(Sections 61 and 62)

10.2 The Act will require the leaders of political groups to take reasonable steps to 
promote and maintain high standards of conduct by the members of their group. 
In doing so, a group leader must co-operate with the council’s standards 
committee in the exercise of its functions to promote and maintain high 
standards of conduct. In turn, a standards committee has new functions under 
the Act to ensure group leaders have access to advice and training to support 
their new duties and to monitor group leaders’ compliance with those duties. 

10.3 Standards committees will be required after the end of each financial year to 
make an annual report to the authority describing how the committee’s 
functions have been discharged during the financial year and setting out an 
overview of conduct matters within the council, and any community councils 
within its area. The council will be obliged to consider the report and any 
recommendations made by the standards committee within 3 months of receipt. 

Position Statement 

The duty on political group leaders in principal councils, as outlined here does 
not extend to community and town councils. From May 2022 Leaders of 
political groups must take reasonable steps to promote and maintain high 
standards of conduct by the members of their group. In doing so, a group 
leader must co-operate with the principal council’s standards committee in 
the exercise of its functions to promote and maintain high standards of 
conduct. In turn, a principal council’s standards committee has new functions 
under the Act to ensure group leaders have access to advice and training to 
support their new duties and to monitor group leaders’ compliance with those 
duties. 
 
It is already the case that all community councils are required to adopt a code 
of conduct and all community councillors are expected to have high standards 
of conduct whether they are part of a political group or not.

Community Council training plans (section 67).

10.3 The Act sets out proposals requiring a Community Council to consider whether 
their councillors and staff possess the knowledge and awareness they need for 
the Council to operate effectively and to make plans for the steps they will take 
to address any training needs identified.

10.4 Once this part of the Act comes into force, Community Councils will have 6 
months to comply with the requirements of compiling a training plan.  A new 
training plan must be put in place after each ordinary election of community 
councillors to reflect changes in training needs.

Tudalen 19



10.5 The training plan and any revisions must be published to ensure transparency 
and accountability of how Councils operate.  Training plans must also be 
considered by the full council.

Position Statement 

Community and Town councils will have a duty to consider training from 5 May 2022 
for councillors and community council staff, and publish the first training plans by 
November 2022.

It is not the intention to ensure that each and every councillor necessarily receives 
training on the same subjects but to seek to bring about a situation where the 
councillors as a group, and the staff collectively, possess the knowledge and 
awareness they need to operate effectively. This takes into account that some 
community councils have only one member of staff, the clerk, and some smaller 
community councils actually share their clerk with one or more other community 
councils. 

Where possible RCT Council will look to share any training provision they have 
available to cover some of the training identified through the plan.

Abolition of community polls

10.6 The Act provides for the abolition of community polls, and implementation of a 
system of petitions in their place. 

10.7 The exception is community governance polls, those which enable a community 
to hold a poll in respect of a proposal to establish or dissolve a community 
council or to group with other communities under a common community council. 

11. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

11.1 The regulatory impact assessment relating to the Act contains Welsh 
Governments costs analysis of the implementation of the provisions within the 
Act.  

12 SUMMARY 

12.1 The ‘Coming into Force’ provisions of the Act are complex, with some 
provisions coming into force within days of Royal Assent, others within two 
months and the majority via Ministerial statutory instruments. 

12.2 An updated and more detailed timeline will be shared when available 
howeverRemote attendance and related matters will be commenced from April 
2021 (when the current emergency coronavirus meeting regulations end); 

Tudalen 20



12.3 Most of the electoral reforms will be introduced in time for implementation at the 
2022 local elections; 

12.4 The power of general competence and public participation duties will apply from 
the 2022 local elections. 

12.5 The Community and Town Councils within RCT are already well paced in 
respect of the requirements coming forward within the Act, and with the support 
of RCT Council and the shared working practices and support identified through 
both the Community Liaison Committee and the Community Charter, the duties 
placed on the all will be achieved, which will further improve public participation 
in the democratic process and further benefits for the people of RCT.

***

Tudalen 21



Tudalen wag



 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

COMMUNITY LIAISON COMMITTEE 
 

23 APRIL 2021  
 

DIGITAL SUPPORT FUND 
 

REPORT OF THE SERVICE DIRECTOR, DEMOCRATIC SERVICES & 
COMMUNICATION. 
 

 

1. PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To present, for Members’ information details of the digital support fund bid 

that was submitted by Rhondda Cynon Taf Council, to support Town and 
Community Councils with digital engagement with residence.  
 

2. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 It is recommended that Members note the content of the report and receive 

further updates in respect of the development of a support programme at 
a future meetings. 
 

3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 The need to advise Members of the development of a digital support 

programme to assist them in their future engagement with residents. 
 

4. DIGITAL SUPPORT FUND 
 
4.1 To support the implementation of the Local Government and Elections 

(Wales) Act 2021 Welsh Government announced a £500,000 digital 
democracy fund to support the digital transformation of democracy 
required to underpin many of the provisions contained within the Act.
  

4.2 Applications were sought from Councils over a short time period during 
January, with Councils needing to demonstrate that their application would 
contribute to the ongoing digital transformation of local democracy. 

 
4.3 Rhondda Cynon Taf Council submitted 3 separate bids to the fund: 
 

Bid 3 Included “the development of a digital support framework to further 
support RCTs Town and Community Councils with digital engagement as 
the Council recognise that Community and Town Councils offer a means 
of connecting with residents at a local level. If successful, this work would 

Tudalen 23

Agendwm 7



promote participation within communities and support broader diversity in 
terms of engagement and representation at a Community Council level”. 
 
 

4.4 The bid outlined how, as a Council, RCT recognise that Town and 
Community Councils provide a vital connection for communities into 
decision making and the Council already regularly engage with Community 
Council members through the Community Liaison Committee.  It was 
advised that these meetings have seen sharing of good practices and 
support provisions for all involved, which has allowed a positive working 
relationship between the Council and the Community and Town 
Councillors. 

 
4.5 Throughout the Covid pandemic, additional support was provided to 

Community and Town Councillors by the Council supporting them with 
their conduct of virtual meetings through the Local Authorities 
(Coronavirus) (Meetings) (Wales) Regulations 2020, providing support and 
guidance with the digital platforms available and taking forward the digital 
engagement agenda.   

 
4.6 Through the use of the digital support fund the Council would look to further 

support Town and Community Councils with digital engagement as the 
Council recognises that Community and Town Councils offer a means of 
connecting with residents at a local level. If successful, this work would 
promote participation within communities and support broader diversity in 
terms of engagement and representation at a Community Council level. 
The Council feels that we would be able to provide and work with 
Community and Town Councils to identify digital solutions to assist their 
democratic processes and respond to the Act.   

 
4.7 This funding will enable practical support to be provided to support Town 

& Community Council Clerks to develop their digital environment, ensuring 
that their Elected Members can represent and communicate with residents 
in a digital way  

 
4.8 This funding would enable ‘good digital working practices’ to be shared 

with our respective town and community councils. Through this support we 
would provide access to training available to principal council members.  

 
Details of the Support. 
 
4.9 Details of the suggested support provided were as follows: 

 Officer support to 12 Community / Town Councils on virtual meetings  

 Support to clerks on scheduling and supporting virtual meetings  

 Supporting respective Town and Community Councils with digital 

participation and identification of solutions to support Community 

Councils to deliver upon the new requirements contained within the local 

government Act. 

 

Tudalen 24



4.10 On the 10th March, 2021 the Council received notification from Welsh 
Government that they had been successful with all 3 of their applications. 

 
4.11 Going forward, a meeting with the clerks will be taking forward to discuss 

the general support needs and a programme of support will be built upon. 
 
5. CONSULTATION / INVOLVEMENT 
 
5.1 Not applicable. 

 
 
6. EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 An Equality Impact Assessment is not needed because the contents of the 

report are for information purposes only.  However, the support with digital 
democracy within Town and Community Councils would provide the 
opportunity for further engagement within the democratic process.  

 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are no financial implications aligned to this report. 
 
 
8. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS OR LEGISLATION CONSIDERED 
 
8.1 Local Government & Elections (Wales) Act 2021. 
 
 
9. CONCLUSION 
 
9.1 Supporting Members and Clerks within the Community and Town Councils 

of RCT is essential to the work of the County Borough as whole, to ensure 
residents receive the services that are needed. 

 
9.2 Engagement with residence needs to be through both a physical and 

virtual platform, and it is important that Community & Town Councils are 
supported in the digital platforms of engagement. 
 
 
 

  

Tudalen 25



LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 
 

AS AMENDED BY 
 

THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT (ACCESS TO INFORMATION) ACT 1985 
 

RHONDDA CYNON TAF COUNTY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

CABINET 
 

5th MARCH  2019 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF COMMUNICATIONS & INTERIM HEAD OF 
DEMOCRATIC SERVICES IN DISCUSSIONS WITH THE LEADER AND 
DEPUTY LEADER OF THE COUNCIL. 
 

 
 
 

Item:  CABINET WORK PROGRAMME: 2018- 19 MUNICIPAL YEAR. 
 

 

 
Background Papers 

 
      
 

 Paragraph 12.1 (Part 4) of the Council’s Constitution. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Officer to contact: Emma Wilkins, Council Business Unit. 

 

Tudalen 26


	Agenda
	3 Cofnodion
	6 DEDDF LLYWODRAETH LEOL AC ETHOLIADAU (CYMRU) 2021
	7 CRONFA CYMORTH DIGIDOL

